V. R. SABNIS & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of OneWorld Logistics Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of ONEWORLD LOGISTICS
PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31 2024,
the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income,
the statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013, as amended ('The Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read
with Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its
loss including, other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the
year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAS), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements' section of our report. We are Independent of the Company in accordance with the
‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Financial Statements.

Emphasis of Matter

There are no matters to report in this paragraph

Key Audit Matters

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report except
debtor & creditor balances, where we have been unable to obtain sufficient & appropriate
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documentation to determine whether the balances as on the date of reporting correctly reflect
the outstanding amount which may be due to or due from such creditors & debtors
respectively. We have also not been able to receive third party confirmations from these
creditors & debtors. Thus, we have relied upon the representation provided by the
management for the closing balances of debtors & creditors as on the reporting date.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report,
Corporate Governance and shareholder's information but does not include the Financial
Statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the Financial
Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic altenative but to do so. The Board of Directors are
also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAS will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Obtain an
understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements for the financial
year ended March 31, 2024 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
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matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

There are no matters to report in this paragraph.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (Il) of section 143 of the Act,
we give in the "Annexure B" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and
4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which
to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of
our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept
by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules read
thereunder;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as
on March 31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a
director in termms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with requirements of section- 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the Company has paid remuneration to its directors
during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under
Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs
has not prescribed other details under section 197(16) of the Act which are
required to be commented upon by us.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate report in "Annexure B" to this report; Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
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accordance with Rule 1 1 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,

2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and

according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in its Financial Statements.

(i) The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable
law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on
long-term contracts including derivative contracts.

(i) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv) Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company
has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account
which doesn't have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility.
Hence, no opinion provided in trail facility.

(v) As per Proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,
maintaining books of accounts using accounting software which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable with effect
from April 1, 2023 to the Company. Accordingly, the reporting under
Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is
applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. Based on our
examination, the Company has used an accounting software which
doesn’t have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility.

3. As required by Section-143(5) of the Act and as per directions and sub-directions
issued by Comptroller and Auditor General of India, we report that:

S. No Directions/Sub-directions Auditor's reply on action Impact on financial

taken on the directions statements
Whether the company has
system in place to process all
the accounting transactions
through IT system? I yes, Yes, the company was
the implications of using Tally Prime
1 processing of accounting Accounting System for NIL
transactions outside IT recording accounting
system on the integrity of the transactions

accounts along with the
financial implications, if any,
may be state

Whether there is any
restructuring of an existing
loan or cases of waiveriwrite
off of debts /loans/interest

2 etc. made by a lender to the
company due to the
company’s inability to repay
the loan? If yes, the financial
impact may be stated

No restructuring of loans
done due to the company’s
inability to repay during the

current financial year

NIL
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Whether funds
received/receivable for
specific schemes from N :
> o receipt of such funds
3 central/ state agencies were during the current financial NIL

properly accounted for/
utilized as per its term and
conditions? List the cases of
deviation.

year

For V. R. Sabnis & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 131055W

Vikram Sabnis

Proprietor
Membership Number: 135589
UDIN: 24135589BKBEIV7675

Date: May 25, 2024
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ONEWORLD
LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with
our audit of the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India". These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance
Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
matenial respects. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. We believe that to the extent of the
audit evidence, we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
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principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of thie inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2024 based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants Of India. Company has its own internal mechanism
to review the internal controls of the company. To the extent of our verification, we found that
internal financial control for the year over financial reporting is adequate.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of aforesaid matter

For V. R. Sabnis & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 131055W/

NV e

Vikram Sabnis

Proprietor
Membership Number: 135589
UDIN: 24135589BKBEIV7675

Date: May 25, 2024
Place: Mumbai
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Annexure ‘B’ to the Independent Auditors Report:

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”
section of our report of even date to the members of OneWorld Logistics Private Limited on
the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024)

Report on Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
of the Company

i. (a)
(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, plant and equipment
(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
Intangible assets.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has a program of physical
verification of its property, plant and equipment by which all property, plant and
equipment assets are physically verified every two years. No material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties
(Other than immovable properties where the company is the lessee and the lease
agreement is duly executed in favor of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statement
are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right to
use assets) or Intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, no proceedings have been initiated during
the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31 2024 for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended
in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(ii) (@) The company is service based hence no inventory/ physical stock is held in the
company and therefore, clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of ¥ 5 crore,
in aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on
the basis of security of current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the
Order is not applicable.

(iii) The Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee and security and
granted any loans and advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, fimms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the year
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(a) The Company has not provided any loans and advance in the nature of loan
during the year:

(A) There are no loans granted by the Company. Hence, reporting under
clause 3(iii)(b) is not applicable.

(B) There are no loans granted by the Company. Hence, reporting under
clause 3(iii)(c) is not applicable.

(C)  There are no loans granted by the Company. Hence, reporting under
clause 3(iii}(d) is not applicable.

(D)  There are no loans granted by the Company which has fallen due during
the year and has been renewed and extended. Hence, reporting under clause
3(iii)(e) is not applicable.

(E) The Company has not given any loans either repayable on demand or
without specifying any terms or period of repayment

(iv) The Companies has complied with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security provided, as
applicable.

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits. Therefore, the reporting of clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government
under sub section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business
activities carried out by the Company. Hence, reporting under clause(vi) of the order is
not applicable to the company

(vii)(a) According to the records of the company, the company is not regular in depositing
with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income tax, GST, sales tax, wealth tax, duty of customs,
duty of excise, value added tax or cess and other statutory dues applicable to it.

Further, according to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employees' state insurance, income —
tax, GST, sales tax, wealth tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax or cess
and other statutory dues were outstanding, as at March 31, 2024, for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable except to the extent disclosed
below:

Name of Nature of | Amount (Rs.) Due Date Remarks
Statute Dues

EMPLOYEES'

STATE ESIC 237 15" August 2022 Not Paid

INSURANCE
ACT, 1948
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Further, it has been observed that professional tax amounting to Rs.17,924.76 has
been collected from the employees during the year, but the same has not been
deposited with professional tax authorities as on March 31, 2024. Such total
outstanding amount pertaining to above default stands at Rs.81,572.76 as at March
31, 2024.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of
the Company examined by us, as at March 31, 2024, there are no dues of
Goods and Service Tax or sales tax or service tax or duty of customs or duty
of excise or value added tax which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute.
However, there have been instances where the ITC claimed in GSTR3B is in
excess of the ITC available in GSTR2A. The summary of the same has been
attached below:

B ITC as per GSTR3B _ ITCas per GSTR2A . | Excess/ {Short) (_Zlaimed
I6sT | casT sGST 1GST CGST SGST 65T | CGST | sGst

Tamil Nadu 11,407| 66101| 66,201 3312| 46544| 46584| 8095| 19557 19,557
Maharashtra| 19,27,142 | 52,19,768 | 52,19,768 | 17,90,714 | 61,51,200 | 61,51,290 | 1,36,428 |(9,31,521)|9,31,521)

State

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, as at March 31, 2024, there were no such transactions
relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (Section
43 of 1961).

(ix)

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in
the payment of interest thereon to any lender. The Company has not been
declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, term loans have been
applied for the purpose for which it is taken.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
examination of the books of accounts by us, funds raised on short term basis have
not been utilized for long term purposes.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Hence, the
requirements fo report on clause (ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the
company.

(e) The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Hence reporting on
clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

x)

(@) The Company did not raise moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
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offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has made rights issue of 76,42,308 equity shares during the year
under review. On the basis of records of the Company examined by us and
according to information and explanations given to us the Company has complied
with the requirement of section 42 and 62 of the Act.

(i)

(a) According the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the
Company or on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the course of our audit.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been
filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and up to the
date of this report

(c) As informed, the Company has not received any whistle blower complaints during
the year and up to the date of this report.

(xi))The company is not a Nidhi company, therefore the provisions of paragraph 3(xii) of
the order is not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act,2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and
the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) The requirement of internal audit is not applicable to the Company and hence
provisions of Clause 3(xiv) (a) to (b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company

(xv) Company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with directors or person
connected with him and therefore the provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act’
2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) & (b) of the Order
is not applicable.

(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined
in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and
accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) & (d) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has incurred
cash losses during the year under amounting to Rs. 469.93 lakhs. Further, it has also
incurred cash loss in immediately preceding financial year amounting to Rs. 731.31
lakhs.

(xviii) There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year due to their pre-
occupation in other commitments as stated in their resignation letter. Further, as per
the information and explanations given to us and as per the resignation letter of
outgoing auditors which is filed with ROC in Form ADT-3, there are no objections or
concerns raised for the said resignation.
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(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of

(xx)

financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company
is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by
the company as and when they fall due.

The provision of Sec 135 of Companies Act 2013 is not applicable to the company,
accordingly reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) and (b) is not applicable.

(xxi) There is no consolidation of financial statements, accordingly reporting under clause

3(xxi) is not applicable.

For V. R. Sabnis & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 131055W

N

Vikram Sabnis

Proprietor
Membership Number: 135589
UDIN: 24135589BKBEIV7675

Date: May 25, 2024
Place: Mumbai

Address: 806, Ecstasy Business Park, City of Joy, JSD Road, Mulund West Mumbai-8o
Email ID: team@vrsabnis.com



ONEWORLD LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED

AUDITED STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31 ,2024
fAmounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

PARTICULARS NOTE NO. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
|. ASSETS
Nen-Current Assets
(a)Property, Plent and Equipment 3 154.95 149.69
(b)Other Intangible Assets 4 6.19 7.60
(c) Deterred Tax Asset (net) 10(d) 23.24 12.34
(d) Current Tax Assets (net) 10(c) 170.84 221.09
355.22 390.72
Current Assets
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 5 1,165.03 899.17
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 6 28.82 108.99
(iii) Bank balance other than (jii) above 7 253.97 240.69
(iv) Loans 8 12.74 4.82
(v) Others 9(a) 128.17 101.73
(d)Other Current Assets 9(b) 450.52 37.35
2,039.24 1,393.75
Total Assets 2,394.46 1,784.47
1. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity Share Capital 11(a) 995.00 230.76
(b) Other Equity 11{b) (1.991.53) (1,472.71)
Total Equity {996.53) (1,241.95)
LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 12(a) 4.14 5.01
(b) Provisions 13(a) 38.37 17.65
42.51 22.66
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilitics
(i) Borrowings 12(b) 2,136.48 2,023.72
(i) Trade Payables 14
8. total outstunding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 21.98 -
b.total outstanding dues of ereditors other than micro enterprises
and amall enterprises 804.41 895.06
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 15(a) 8.18 1.00
(b) Othor Gurrent Liabilities 15(b) 376.114 83.95
(c) Provisions 13(b) 1.32 0.04
Total Liabilties 3,348.48 3,003.76
Total Equity and Liabilities 2,394.46 1,784.47|
Surntnary of Materlal Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements
In terms of our report attached

For VR SABNIS & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 0131055W

Vikram R Sabnis

Proprietor

Membership No. 135589
UDIN: 24135589BKBEIV7675

Date: May 25, 2024
Place: Mumbai

For and on behalf of

Pragkant Rane
xecutive Officer

Date: May 25, 2024
Place: Mumbai

Board of Directors of

Makarand Pradhan
Director
DIN : 00102413

Shrikant Nibandhe
Director
DIN: 01029115




ONEWORLD LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED

AUDITED STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
{Amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated}

PARTICULARS NOTE NO. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

1) Revenue from Operations 16 8,972.60 6,677.25
I1) Other Income 17 47.82 10.81
111) Total Income {1+11) 9,020.42 6,688.06
IV) Expenses

(a) Employee Benefits Expenses 18 525.56 445.07
(b) Finance Cost 19 164.65 133.49
(c) Depreciation and amaortization expense 20 48.37 27.48
(d) Other Expenses 21 8,800.14 6,840.83
V) Total Expenses 9,5638.71 7.446.86
VI) Profit/(Loss) beforetax (1ll-V) : (518.29) (758.80)

VIl) Tax expenses from continuing operations
(1) Current Tax = z
(2) Deferred Tax 10(a) (8.03) (6.89)

VIII) Profit/(Loss) for the period from continuing
operations {(VIIi-IX) (510.27) (751.91)

1X) Profit/(Loss) for the period (X+XIll) {510.27) {751.91)

X) Other Comprehensive Income
A. Items that will not be reclassified to_profit or loss in subsequent years

Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans {11.41) 0.30
Income Tax Effect 2.87 (0.15)
(8.54) 0.15

Net other comprehensive income to not be reclassified to profit or loss in

subsequent periods (8.54) 0.1%
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax (8.54) 0.15
XI) Total Comprehensive Income for the period {IX+X) (518.81) (751.76)
Xil} Earning per Equity Share i

(1) Basic (X per share) 22 (11.03) (32.58)
(2) Diluted ( ¥ per share) 22 (11.03) (32.58)

Summary of Material Accounting Policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements
In terms of our report attached

For VR SABNIS & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of ti
Firm No. 0131055W Oneworld Logisti

UDIN: zW?s

Vikram R Sabnis

Proprietor

Membership No. 135589
UDIN: 24135589BKBEIV7675

‘Board of Directors of
Private Limited

& (\»_UM

hant Rane Makarand Pradhan Shrikant Nibandhe
ief Executive Officer Director Director
DIN : 00102413 DIN : 01029115

Date: May 25, 2024 Date: May 25, 2024
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai




ONEWORLD LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED

AUDITED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(Amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

PARTICULARS

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Profit before tax
Adjustments:

Depreciation & amortization
Interest Expense

Interest Income

Loss on Sale of Assets
Provision for ESOP

Working capital changes :

Increase/(Decrease} in Trade Payable
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities
Increase/(Decrease) in Short-Term Provisions
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables
(Increase)/Decrease in Short-Term Loans and Advances
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets

Net cash generated from operations

Direct taxes Paid

Net cash generated by operating activities

B. Cash flow from investing activities:

Purchase of Property, Plat and Equipments, including Intangibles
Proceeds from sale of Property, Tax and Equipments
Investment/{Redemption) of Fixed Deposits

Interest income Received

Net cash used in investing activities

C. Cash flow from financing activities:

Loan Received

Proceeds of Right Issue

Interest Expense

Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities

Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents during the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

(518.29) (758.79)
0.00

48.37 27.48
164.65 12.84
(30.086) (8.70)
0.00 2.86
0.00 0.00
(68.67) 480.65
299.33 (79.51)
10.59 14.71
(265.86) (322.28)
(7.91) (21.76)
(439.60) (71.38)
(807.45) (723.87)
50.25 (56.40)
(757.20) {780.27)
(52.22)|" (119.72)
0.00 1.14
(13.28) (224.29)
30.06 8.70
(35.43) (334.17)
111.89 1,225.19
764.23 0.00
(164.65) (12.84)
711.47 1,212.35
(81.17) 87.91
109.99 12.09
28,82 109.99

Summary of Material Accounting Policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

In terms of our report attached

For VR SABNIS & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 0131055W

AT

Vikram R Sabnis

Proprietor

Membership No. 135589
UDIN: 24135589BKBEIV7675

Date: May 25, 2024
Place: Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Oneworld Logistic

Date: May 25, 2024
Place: Mumbai

rivate Limited

Makarand Pradhan
Director
DIN: 00102413

2 LDy

AR}
Shrikant Nibandhe
Director
DIN:01029115




ONEWORLD LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED

AUDITED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

{Amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity Share Capital
For the Year Ended March 31, 2023

Particulars No. in Lacs Amount
Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
At April 01, 2022 1.00 10.00
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors
Bestated Balance as at April 01, 2023 1.00 10.00
Issue of share capital 22.08 220.77
At March 31, 2023 23.08 230.77
For the Year Ended March 31, 2024
Particulars No. in Lacs Amount
Equity shares of INR 10 each issued. subscribed and fully paid
At April 01, 2023 23.08 230.77
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors
Restated Balance as at April 01,2023 23.08 230.77
Issue of share capital (Note 9) 76.42 764.23
At March 31, 2024 99.50 995.00
B. Other Equity
For the Year Ended March 31, 2023
Reserve and Surplus Items of OCI
A - . Share Based aents
Particulars Securities Retained Payment through other Total
Premium Earnings comprehensiv
Reserve N
e income
Opening Balance as at April 01, 2022 - (733.45) 12.50 - {720.95)
Profit for the year - (751.90) - - {751.90)
Other comprehensive Income - 0.15 - - 0.15
Total Comprehensive Income as at March 31, 2023 - (1,485.20) 12.50 - (1,472.71)
For the Year Ended March 31, 2024
Reserve and Surplus Items of OCI
. ) .' . Share Based instruments
Particulars Securities Retained Payment through other Total
Premium Earnings comprehensiv
Reserve N
eincome

Opcning Balance as at April 01, 2023 - (1,485.20} 12.50 - (1,472.71)
Profit for the year - (510.27) - - (R10.27)
Other comprehensive Income : - (8.54) - - (8.54)
Total Comprehsnsive Income as at March 31, 2024 - (2,004.02) 12.60 (1,991.63)
Summary of Material Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements
In terms of our report attached
ForV R SABNIS & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 0131055W

For and on behalf of the
Oneworld Logistics

rid of Directors of

ot Oy

r

Vikram R Sabnis
Proprietor

Membership No. 135589
UDIN: 24135589BKBEIV7675

nt Rane
Chief Exgcutivi Officer

Pras Makarand Pradhan
Director

DIN: 00102413

Shrikant Nibandhe
Director
DIN : 01029115

Date: May 25, 2024 Date: May 25, 2024

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai




ONEWORLD LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

NOTE 1: CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Standalone Financial Statements comprises financial statements of One World Logistics Private
Limited (CIN: U63090MH2010PTC198688) for the year ended 31 March 2024. The Company is a private
company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of The Companies Act, 2013
applicable in India. It has its Registered office at 7th Floor, T-Square, Opposite Chandivali Petrol Pump,
Saki Vihar Road, Andheri (E), Mumbai- 400072. The Company is in the business of last-mile delivery.

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (the ‘Ind AS’) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) and subsequent
amendments thereof. These financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention
on the accrual basis except for certain other financial assets and liabilities which have been
measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

The Company has significant accumulated losses, exceeding the paid-up share capital of the
company. But the Company is funded by holding company and the holding company has shown
intentions of continuing the funding for the operations of the Company thus the Going Concern
Assumption holds true, and the financial statements are prepared accordingly.

a) Current versus Non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current
classification.

An asset is treated as current when itis:

e Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle or twelve
months after reporting period,

= held primarily for thie purpose of trading or cash or cash equlvalent unless restricted trom being
exchanged, or

e used to settle liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assels are classilied as non-current,
A liability is treated as current when it is:

e Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle or within twelve months after reporting period,
e (tisheld primarily for the purpose of trading, or

e there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.




ONEWORLD LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

b) Foreign Currency:

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial
statements are presented in indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at their respective functional currency (i.e. Indian
rupee) spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency closing rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
usingthe exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

Exchange differences arising on translation / settlement of foreign currency monetary items are
recognized as income or expenses in the period in which they arise.

c) FairValue Measurement:
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, investments at fair value at each balance sheet.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e |nthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
e Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability,

The principat or he most advantageous matkel must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.




ONEWORLD LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level ihput that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Level 1—Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

e Level 2—Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3— Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and unguoted
financial assets, and significant liabilities, such as contingent consideration.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

d) Investments and Other Financial Assets

The Company classifies its financial assets in the fotlowing measurement categories:

* those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss), and

* those measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and
the contractnal terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business modelin
which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the
Company has made an irrevocable electlon at the time of Inltlal recognitlon to account for the equity
investment at fair value through ather comprehensive income. The Company reclassifies debt
investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to -
the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the group classifies its debt instruments:




ONEWORLD LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortized cost and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized or impaired. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for cotlection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognized in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recogrized in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognized under other
income. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective
interest rate method.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or
FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognized in profit or loss and presented
in the statement of profit and loss under other income in the period in which it arises. Interest or
dividend income, if any from these financial assets is separately included in other income.

Impairment of Financial Assets: The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortized cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk.

Equity investments (other than Investments in subsidiaries and associates):

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Company’s
management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and lossces to profit
or luss. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognized in profit or loss as other income
when the Company’s right to receive payments is established. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in other
income in the statement of profit and loss.




ONEWORLD LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

e) Revenue Recognition:

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Ind AS 115 Revenue from
contracts with customers outlines a single comprehensive model of accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers and supersedes current revenue recognition guidance found within Ind ASs.

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more
parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that
must be met

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a
contract with a customer to transfer services to the customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which
the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a
customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that
has more than one performance obligation, the Company allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognize revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

Interest Income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effective
interest rate (“EIR"), which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company
estimates the cxpocted cash flows by cunsidering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument
but docs not consider the expecled credit losses.

Other Income

Profit / loss on sale of investments is recognized at the time of such sale / redemption and is computed
based on weighted average cost. Income and éxpense on account of changes in fair value is recognized
based on the fair value of the investments as on the balance sheet date.

f) Taxes:
Current Income Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with the Income tax Act, 1961. The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss is recognized
outside the Statement of Profit and Loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).
Management p'eriodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.




ONEWORLD LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using liability approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date
and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside statement of profit and loss is recognized outside
statement of profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are
recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI (Other Comprehensive Income) or
directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity

and the same taxation authority.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivahles aor payahles in the balance sheet,

g) Property, plant and equipment:

Freehald tand is carried at historical cost. Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase
price and any cost attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.
Borrowing cost relating to acquisition of tangible assets which take substantial period of time to get ready
forits intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be
put to use. Capital work in progress is stated at cost.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if
the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in statement
of profit and loss as incurred.




ONEWORLD LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on a reducing balance basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows: :

Category Useful lives (in years)
Building 30to 60

Furniture and Fixtures 10

Office Equipment 5

Vehicle 6to8

Computer 3t06

The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of
the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

h) Borrowing Costs:

Borrowing costs includes interest and amortization of ancillary cost over the period of loans which are
incurred in connection with arrangements of borrowings.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as
part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to
the borrowing costs.

i) Leases:

Leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at that date at which the lease
asset is available for use by the Company. Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Company allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-lease
components baacd on their relativo stand alone prices.

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company
assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of the contract, Ind AS 116 defines a lease as
a contract, or a part of a contract, that convey as the right of use an asset (the underlying asset) for a
period of time in exchange of consideration. To assess whether as contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an
identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
through the period of the lease and (i) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.




ONEWORLD LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a
term of twelve months or less (short term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low
value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as operating expenses on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.

j) Provisions:

Provisions are recognhized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract,
the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any
reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pretax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

k) Contingent Liabilities:

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extreme
rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably.
The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial
statements.

) Retirement and other employee benefits:
e Short-term employee benefits
Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of availing employee services are
classified as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus
and ex-gratia. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits such as salaries and
wages, bonus and cx-gratia to be paid in exchange of employes services are recognized in the
period in which the employee renders the related service.

e Post-employment benefits

Defined Contribution Plans:

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays
specified contributions to a separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts.
The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Provident Fund and Employees
State Insurance Corporation (‘ESIC’). The contribution is recognized as an expénse in the
Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which employee renders the related service.
There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the Provident Fund and
Employee State Insurance Scheme.




ONEWORLD LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Defined Benefit Plan:

Gratuity liability, wherever applicable, is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation done
as per projected unit credit method, carried oul by an independent actuary at the end of the year.
The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive
income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the
balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments
or curtailments are recognized immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

m) Cash and cash equivalents;

Cash comprise of cash on hand and demand deposits at the bank. Cash equivalents comprise of short
term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and demand
deposit, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s
cash management.

n) Cash flow statement:

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary items and
tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of noncash naturc and eny deferrals or accruals of past or
future cash recsipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing aclivilies uf the
Company are segregated in the Cash flow statement.

o) Earnings per share:

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the
weighted average number ot equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit of the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all
periods presented for any share splits and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to
the approval of the financial statements by the Board of Directors.
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p) Non-current assets held for sale:

The Company classifies non-current assets as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sale rather than through continuing nse. Actinns required to complete the sale
should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the sale will be made or that the decision to
sell will be withdrawn. Management must be committed to the sale expected within one year from the
date of classification.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale to owners are not
depreciated or amortized.

q) Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Fallowing initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.

Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite
lives is recognized in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying
value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of
profit and luss when the asset is derecognized.

r) Investment Property:

An investment in land or building, which is not intended to be occupied substantially for use by, or in the
operations of the Campany, is classified as investment property. Investment properties are stated at
cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if
the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of the investment property are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All
other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in statement of profitand loss as incurred.

Depreciation on building component of investment property is calculated on a straight-line basis using
the rate arrived at based on the useful life estimated by the management which is 60 years.
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Though the Company measures investment property using cost-based measurement, the fair value of
investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on an annual evaluation
performed by an accredited external independent valuer applying a valuation model recommended by
the International Valuation Standards Committee or on the basis of appropriate ready reckoner value
based on recent market transactions.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when they are
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in
statement of profit and loss in the period of derecognition.

s) Impairment of non-financial assets:

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or Company of assets. When the carrying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

In assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are
taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are
prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These
budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term
growth rate is calculated and applied to project tuture cash tlows after the fifth year.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining
useful life

For assets excluding goodwill, an agacssment is madc at cach reporting date to determine whether there
is an indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such
indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is
limited so that the carrying amount of the asset exceeds neither its recoverable amount nor the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and loss unless the
assetis carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

t) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.
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Financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Financial tiabilities are initially measured at the amortized cost unless at initial
recognition, they are classified as fair value through profit and loss.
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all
changes in fair value recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Afinancial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires.

u) Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakh as
per the requirement of Schedule lll, unless otherwise stated

v} Reclassification
Previous year figures have been reclassified / regrouped wherever necessary.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amoeunts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. Some of the significant accounting
judgement and estimates are given below:

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that
may differ from actual developments In the future. These include the determination ot the discount rate;
future salary Increases and martality rates. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate
for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in
currencies consistent with the currencies ot the post-employment benefit obligation. Future salary
increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.
The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those
mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the discounted cash flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk
and volatility.
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Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. The
charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected
useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of
Company assets are determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed
periodically, including at each financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar
assets.

Effective Interest Rates

The Company’s EIR methodology recognizes interest expense using a rate of return that represents the
best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioral life of loans taken and recognizes
the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages and other characteristics of the product
life cycle (including prepayments and penalty interest and charges).

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behavior and life-
cycle of the instruments, as well as expected.

Lease Terms

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods
covered by an option to terminate the lease, if itis reasonably certain not to be exercised.
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(Amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 3 : Property, plant and equipment

Patriculars OIfflce Vehicle Furn-|ture EoC Computer Total
Equipment . Fixture

Cost
At April 01, 2022 59.70 - 33.54 6.68 99.92
Additions 43.73 10.76 55.34 3.05 112.88
Disposals (1.08) (2.85) (0.40) (0.17) (4.51)
At March 31, 2023 102.34 7.91 88.48 9.56 208.29
Additions 7.27 - 42,56 2.38 52.22
Disposals - . - - -
At March 31, 2024 109.61 7.91 131.04 11.95 260.51
Accumulated Depreciation
At 1 April 2022 18.00 - 9.69 4.67 32.36
Depreciation charge for the year 13.65 0.78 10.22 2.09 26.74
Disposals (0.40) - {0.10) - (0.50)
At March 31, 2023 31.25 0.78 19.81 6.76 58.59
Depreciation charge for the year 17.85 1.98 24.20 2.92 46.96
Disposals -
At March 31, 2024 49.11 2.76 44.01 9.68 105.55
Net Carrying Value
At March 31, 2024 60.50 5.15 87.02 2.27 154.95
At March 31, 2023 71.08 7.13 68.67 2.81 149.69
Note 4: Intangible Assets

) Software
Patriculars
Cost
At April 01, 2022 2.50
Additions 6.84
Additions - being internally developed
Disposals
At March 31, 2023 9.34
Additions -
Additions - being internally developed -
Dispusals -
At March 31, 2024 9.34
Accumulated depreciation
At April 01, 2022 1.00
Depreciation charge during the year 0.74
Disposals
At March 31, 2023 1.74
Depreciation charge during the year 1.41
Disposals -
At March 31, 2024 3.15
Net Carrving Value
At March 31, 2024 6.19

At March 31, 2023

7.60
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(Amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 5: Trade R

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Trade receivables 1,165.03 899.17
Raceivables from an assaciate
Receivables from other related parties
Total trade recelvables 1,165.03 899.17
Break-up for S ity Details: {Amounts in INR Lakhs unlass otherwise stated)
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Irade Receivables
A.Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good 1,165.03 899.17
Total 1,165.03 899.17

Yearended 31st March, 2024

L. 6 (6 the -
Particulars Not Due e R 1-2 years 2-3years More than 3 years |Total

months vear
a.Undisputed Trade Receivables -
considered good 1.068.36 21.25 70.48 4.94 - - -
Year Ended 31" March, 2023

6 |6 -

Particulars Not Due OO IR 1-2years 2-3years More than 3 years |Total

manths vea
a.Undisputed Trade Receivables -
considered good 789.73 43.64 46.20 - 15.90 3.70 899.17
Note 6 : Cash and Cash Equivalent
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balances with banks : in current accounts 28.54 109.82
Cash on hand 0.27 0.16

Total 28.82 109.99

At 31 March 2023, the Company had available INR 14.45 Lakhs of undrawn committed borrowing facilities.
At 31 March 2024, the Company had available INR 59.68 Lakhs of undrawn committed borrowing facilities.

Nole 7 ;: Bunk balances other than cash and cash equ

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Fixed deposits
- with original maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months

240.69

- with original maturity of less than 12 months at the balance sheet date 253.97
Total 253.97 240.69
Note 8; Loans
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Loans to related parties
Unsieured, considered good
Advance to Directors tor Expenses {Imprest) 0.75 =
Loans to Others
Unsecured, considered good 11.99 4.82
Total 12.74 4.82
Note 8(n} : Other Financial Assats
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current
Unsecured, considered good
Security Deposit 128.17 101.73
Total 128.17 101.73
Note 9(b) : Other Assets
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current
Prepaid Expenses 63.84 37.35
Advance to Vendors 386.68
Total 450.52 37.35
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(Amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
Note 10: Income Taxes

a. Income Tax expense
Profi L Secti

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Current Tax

Current tax expense

Taxable in different heads of Income
Short provision of Previous Years
Current Tax Expense

Deferred Tax

Relating to Origination and Reversal of Temporary Differences 8.03 6.89
Total Deferred Tax Expense/(Benefit) - 8.03 6.89
Total Income Tax Expenses reported in thhe statement of Profit and Loss 8.03 6.89

Other Comprehensive Income Section
Deferred Tax Relating to the Items Racognized in OCI during the year

Deferred Income Tax

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Net (loss)/Gain on remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plan

(2.87)

0.15

Total Deferred Income Tax (Expenses)/Income charged to OCI

(2.87)

0.15

b. Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate:

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Profit before income tax expense

Enacted Tax rate (%)

Tax atIndia's statutory income tax rate of 25.168% (31st March 2023: 25.168%)

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income
Tax effect of amounts which are deductible in calculating taxable income

Taxable in different heads of Income

Short provision of Previous Years

Deferred Tax Expense

Income Tax Expense

(518.29) (758.80)
25,168% 25.168%
10.90 6.74
10.90 6.74

c. Current tax assets / {liability)

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Opening income tax asset / (liability) at the beginning of the year / period
Income tax paid

Income tax refund received

MAT Credil Ulilised

Additional Pravision made for priar period

Currentincome tax payable for the period / year

Net current income tax asset / (liability) at the end of the year / period
Income Tax Asset

221.09 164.69
446.01 111,74
(496.26) (55.34)
170.84 221.09
170.84 221.09

Deferred tax Relates to the following:
Balance Sheet

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangibles - Impact of difference in Tax

Depreciation and Depreciation Charged to Profit and Loss Statement 13.25 7.74
Employee Benefits 9.99 4.60
Total 23.24 12.34

Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

5.61 4.98
Employee Benefits 2.51 1.91
Total 8.03 6.89

Reconciliation of Deferred Tax Assets

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Opening Balance 12.34 5.60
Tax Income/(expense) charged to Profit and Loss 8.03 6.89
Tax Income/(expense) charged to OCI 2.87 (0.15)
Total 23.24 12.34
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Note 11(a}: Equity Share Capital

Particulars March 31, 2024 Marchp31, 2023
Authorised capital
1,00,00,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each 1,000.00 500.00
(March 31, 2023 : 50,00,000 shares of Rs.10 Each)
Issued, s
99,50,000 Equity Share of ¥ 10 each (March 31, 2023: 23,07,693 Equity Shares) 995.00 230.77
I Reconciliation of number of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
As at March 31 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Particulars No. of Shares (in Amount No. of Shares (in T

Lakhs) Lakhs)
Equity Shares
At the beginning of the year 23.08 230.77 21.00 210.00
(+) Issued during the year 76.42 764.23 2.08 20.77
(-) Forfeited during the year - = = =
Outstanding at the end of the year 99.50 995.00 23.08 230.77

The Company has made rights issue of 76,42,308 equity shares amounting to Rs. 7,64,23,080 during the year under review by converting the loan from holding company to equtiy

share capital.

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and

pays dividends in Indian rupees, The divide_nd proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts.
The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

ii. Details of shareholder holding more than 5% equity shares of the company

As at March 312024 As at March 31, 2023
N of Sharehold b i . of S| i
ame are er No. of Shares (in %holding No. of Shares (in %holding
Lakhs) Lakhs)
Total Transport Systems Limited 99.50 100.00 23.08 100.00
lii. Promoter Helding
Name of Promoter As at March 31 2024 As at March 31, 2023
. of S| i No. of Shares (i
N °La:::s {in %holding %change = °Lak:s)°s n %holding %change

Total Transport Systems Limited 99.50 100.00 - 23.08 100.00 9.00
Shrikant Nibandle = - - - - (3.00)
Makarand Pradhan - - » = (3.00)
Eanjiv Dotnis - - - - - (3.00)

99 R0 100.00 23.08 100.00 0.00
Note 11(b) ; Other Equity

Reserve and Surplus
Particulars Securities . Share Based Total
Retalned Earnings
Premium Reserve Mayment Neseive

Balance as at April 01, 2022 - (733.45) 12.50 (720.95)
Profit for.the year - (751.90) - (751.90)
Other comprehsensive Income - 0.15 - 0.15
Balance as at March 31, 2023 - (1,485.20) 12.50 (1,472.71)
Balance as at April 01, 2023 - (1,485.20) 12.50 {1,472.71)
Profit for the year - (510.27) - (510.27)
Otharcomprehensiva Incomie - (8.54) - (8:54)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 (2,004.01} 12.50 (1,991.53)

Nature and Purpose of Reserves
uriti remj

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such es issuance of bonus shares in accordance with

the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

2 Retained Earn

Retained earnings are the profits/(loss) that the Company has earned/incurred till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to
shareholders. Retained earnings include re-measurement loss / (gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Note 12 : Borrowings
Note 12(a) : Non-Current Borrowings

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

A. Secured Borrowings
- from Banks

- from Related Parties

- from Others

B. Unsecured Borrowings
- from Banks

- from Related Parties

- from Others

5.01

Total

5.01

Note 12{b) : Current Borrowings

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

A. Secured Borrowings
- from Banks

- from Related Parties

- from Others

B. Unsecured Borrowings
-from Banks

- from Related Parties
-from Others

C. Current Maturities of long-term borrowing

540.66

1,590.40

5.42

185.55

1,827.34

10.83

Total

2,136.48

2,023.72

Tenn Loans v banks are unsecured. They carry fixed interest rate of 15% and CMI is Rs.1,00,99G

Borrowing from bank is an overdraft facility with a drawing limit of Rs.4,00,00,000. The averdraft carry an interest rate of |-MC

of 0.35%

| R# and a spread

Secured borrowing from bank I a vehlicle loan of Rs.5,73,945 with a current maturity of R$.2,48,712. The effeclive inleresl 1ale is 19.2098% p.a.

and the processing fees for loan was Rs.10,158.

Note 13: Provisions
Note 13(a) : Non-Current Provisions

Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023

Provision for Gratuity 38.37 17.65
Total 38.37 17.65

Note 13(b) : Current Provisions

Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023

Provision for Gratuity

1.32

0.04

Total

1.32

0.04
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Note 14 : Trade Payables

Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
MSME 21.98 -
Others 804.41 895.06
Total 826.39 895.06
Trade Payables Ageing Schedule
Year Ended 31 March 2024
L than 1 M t
Particulars N 1-2 years 2-3 years LI Total
vear years
MSME 21.98 - - - 21.98
Others 804.41 - - - 804.41
Disputed dues (MSME) and - - = . =
Disputed dues ( Others ) - - - - -
Year Ended 31™ March 2023 -
Particulars Less than 1 yea|1-2 years 2-3years GGG Total
vears
MSME - - - - -
Others 895.06 - - - 895.06
Disputed dues (MSME) and - - - - -
Disputed dues ( Others ) - - - - -
N 15(a) : Other Fi ial Liabiliti
Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Audit Fees Payable 3.38 1.00
Other Liabilities 4.80 -
Total 8.18 1.00
Nole 15(b) : Other Current Liabilities 0
Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Statutory Payables 79.17 81.57
Other Liabilities 1.67 2.38
Contract Liabilities 295.27 -
Total 376.11 83.95
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Note 16: Revenue from Operations

Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Revenue from Operations 8,972.60 6,677.25
Total 8,972.60 6,677.25
Note 17: Other Income
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest on Fixed Deposit 16.37 4.63
Interest on income Tax Refund 13.69 4.07
Other Income 17.75 2.1
Total 47.82 10.81
Note 18 : Employee benefit expenses
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Salaries, wages and bonus 393.01 384.49
Contribution to statutory funds 15.16 5.91
Staff welfare expenses 117.39 54.67
Total 525.56 445.07
Note 19 : Finance Cost
Particulars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Interest on Loan - Bank and other financialinstitutions 15.88 35.43
Interest on Loan - Related Party 147.45 85.21
Interest - Statutory Dues 0.01 12.84
Interest Expense - Others 1.31
Total 164.65 133.49
Note 20 : Depreciation and amortization expense
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipemts 46,96 26.74
Amortization of Intangible Assets 1.41 0.74
Total 48.37 27.48
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Note 21 : Other expenses

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Handling Expenses

Advertising and Publicity
Business Promotion
Communication Expense
Conveyance & Travelling Expense
Electricity expense

Postage expense

Printing and stationery

Rent, rates and taxes

Repairs and Maintenance charges
Professional Fees

Subscription and Membership
Other expenses

Payment to Auditor
As auditors:

Audit fees

Tax audit fees

Total

8,029.41 6,151.22
0.94 0.19
18.08 15.30
24.68 20.98
66.79 51.12
61.46 35.11
2.51 4.62
17.09 19.79
225.86 133.70
65.32 67.39
21.74 31.89
27.23 8.60
234.99 299.61
8,796.09 6,839.53
2.80 1.00
1.25 0.30
4.05 1.30
8,800.14 6,840.83

Note 22 : Earnings per share

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company used in
calculating basic carnings per share and diluted carnings per share
Profit for the period

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in
calculating basic and diluted earnings per share

Nutninal valug of shares

Earnings per equity share (basic and diluted)

Employee Stock Option Planthat could potentially dilute basic earnings

per share in the future, but were not included in the calculation of diluted

earnings per share because they are antidilutive for the period presented

(510.27)

46.25
10.00
{11.03)

(752.05)

23.08
10.00
(32.58)

1ol
1an|

e
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Note 23: Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

I)The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any
supplier as at the end of each accounting year

a) Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises

b) Interest due on above

Il) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED
Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond

the appointed day during each accounting year
Il) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each
accounting year

VI} The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year)
but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006.

V) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually
paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible

expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

21.98

Note 24: Details of Revenue from Contract with Customers
a. Principal revenue Generation Activity

Oneworld Logistics Private Limited is generating revenue majorly through last mile delivery services on all India level. It includes
pickup and delivery of shipments from base hub till customer doorstep and invoicing generated on monthly basis.

b. Disaggregation Revenue Information
The Company's disaggregated revenue by Geographical Location

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Last-Mile Delivery Operations 8,972.60 6,677.25
Total Revenue from contracts with customers 8,972.60 6,677.25
Location wise:

India 8,972.60 6,6//.25
Qutsido India - i

Total Revenue from contracts with customers 8,972.60 6,677.25

c. Contract Balances

The timing of revenue recognition,billings and cash collection results in trade receivables, and hillings in excrss nf rnsts and

estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts (Contract Liabilities) on the balance sheet as at March 31, 2024.
The Company discloses receivables from contracts with cusloiners separalely in the balance sheet. To comply with the other

disclosure requirements for contract assets and liabilities following information is disclosed.

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Trade Receivables
Contract Liabilities

1,165.03
295.27

899.17

d. Reconciliation with amount recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss with Contracted Price

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Revenue At contrated Price

8,972.60

6,677.25

Total Revenue from contracts with customers

8,972.60

6,677.25

e. The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations

(unsatisfied or partially

unsatisfied) as at

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Within one year
More than one year

295.27

295.27
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(Amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 25: Net employee defined benefit liabilities

a. Defined Contributions Plans

For the company an amount is contributed to provident funds, ESIC and other funds is recognised by es an expense and included In "Contibutlon to

Provident & Other Funds" under "Employee benefits expense" in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

b. Defined Benefits Plans

As per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of
service gets a gratuily on resignation or retirement at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for eachcompleted year of service.
The following table's summaries the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the funded status and

amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans of the company

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

|. Statement of profit and loss - Net employee benefit expense recognised in employee cost

Current service cost 9.28 5.91
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 1.31 0.78
Net benefits expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 10.59 6.69
1l. Balance Sheet - Details of provision and fair value of plan assets
Benefit obligation (39.69) (17.69)
Net Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet {39.69) (17.69)
11. Change in the present value of the defined beneift obligation are as follows:
Opening defined henefits obligations 17.69 11.30
Interest cost 1.31 0.78
Current service cost 9.28 5.9
Benefits paid - -
QocCl - -
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions 14.33 (0.87)
Actuarial changes arising from changes in experience assumptions (2.91) 0.57
Llability at the end of the year 39.69 17.69
V. Total Cost recognised in Comprehensive Income
Costracogmsed in P&L 10.59 6.69
Rameasurement effecta recognised in OCI 11.41 {0.30)
22.00 6.39

Maturity profile of defined benefit ebligation:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Year1 1.32 0.04
Year?2 1.73 0.97
Year 2.88 1.81
Yeard 2,28 2.08
Year5 2.55 1.59
Year6to 10 18.56 7.78
Sum of years 11 and above 76.02 28.21
Ihe pringipal assumptions used lh dotermining gratulty ebligatlons tor the plans of the Cumipuriy dre us fulluws:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Discount rate 7.21% 7.41%

Salary escalation 15.00% 10.00%
Employee Turnover rate 10.00% 10.00%

Mortality Rate during Employment

Indian Assured Lives
Mortaility {2012-14)

Indian Assured Lives
Mortaility (2012-14)

A quantitative sensitivity annlysis for the significant assumptions as at march 31, 2024

Defined benefijt obligation

March 31, 2024

Delta effect of +1% change in the rate of discounting
Delta effect of -1% change in the rate of discounting
Delta effect of +1% change in the rate of salary increase
Delta effect of -1% change in the rate of salary increase
Delta effect of +1% change in employee turnover rate
Delta effect of -1% change in employee turnover rate

(3.92)
4.65
3.38

(3.22)

(2.02)
2.31

Marah 31, 2023

(1.52)
1.77
1.71

(1.50)

(0.57)
0.62
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Note 26 : Related Party Disclosures

The Disclosure pertaining to the related parties as required by Indian Accounting Standard 24 issued by Ministry of Carporate

Affairs (MCA), as applicable, are indicated below:
i. Related parties where control axists:

Holding Company
Total Transport Syatom Limitcd

il. Other related parties:
Associatos and Joint Ventures

iii. Entities over which key managerial perasonnol or their relatives exercise significantinfluence:

Commen Director

Jag Software Solution Private Limited

WSA SHPG Bombay Private Limited

CLA Express Private Limited

RN Freight Forwarders Private Limited
Seeder {India) E-commerce Private Limited

iv. Koy mnnnnnriﬂl porsonnol:

N/A

Name

Mr Prashant Rane

Mr. Shrikant Nibandhe

Director

Mr Saniiv Potnis

Director

Mr Makarand Prodhan

Director

Leena Salvi

Director

v, Relatives of KMP {Prashant Rana)

Name

Designation

Mrs. Vijava Vishwanath Rana

Relative of Key Manageral personal

Mr. Kiran Vishwanath Rane

Relotive of Key Manageral pérsonal

Mr. Vivaan Prashant Rane

Relative of Key Manageral personal

Ms. iraa Prashant Rane

Ralative of Kav Manageral nersanal

Mr, Jay Nibandhe

| Relative of Key Manageral personal

Ms, GauriNIbandhe

Relative of Key Manageril parsanal

Mrs. Sneha Nibandhe

Aelntive of Key Managerol persanal

Mr. Damodar Nibandha

Rolative of Key Manageral personal

Mrs. Meena Nibandhe

felative of Key Managerol personal

Mrs, Prerana Jay Nibandhe

Relntive of Key Manageral personal

Mrs. Vrinda Pradhan

Relative of Key Manageral personal

Mr, Abhijeet Pradhan

Relative of Kev Managaral persanal

Mr. Aditya Pradhan

Relative of Key M | poraohial

Mrs. Mrunalini Pradhan

Relative of Key Manageral personal

Mrs, Mrinalinj Pradhan

Relative of Kev Manageral personal

Mr, Yash Salvi

Relative of Kev Manageral personal

Ms. Tanya Salvi

Rela

o of Kev Manageral nersanal
Y a5

Mr. Siddharth Potnis

Relative of Key Manageral personal

Ms. Sanjana Potnis

Relative of Key Manageral persanal

Mrs. Simran Potnis

Relative of Key Manageral personal

b. |. Summary of transactions with related parties:

DNortioulara

Maroh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Other Reluted Pacty. Rumunaration

Key Managerial Persons 31.94 26.66
Interest Expense

Total Transport Systems Limited 147.45 84.79
Support Charges (Expansas)

Total Transport Systerns Limited 226.64 140.74
Support Charges (Income)

Total Transport Systems Limited = 0.33

b.il. Bolance Qutstanding at the End of the Yoar

Particulars

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Loan From

Total Transport Systems Limited
Shrikant Damodar Nibandhe

Creditors.
Total Transport Systems Limited

Current Assets
Financial Assets
Advances

Prashant Rane

1580.81 1827.33
9.58 -
56.32 -

0.75 -
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Note 27: Fair Value hierarchy
The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The Company has established the following fair value hierarchy that categorises the values into 3 tevels. The inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair
value of financial instruments are:

Level 1: This hierarchy uses quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of
observable market data and rely as little as possibie on Company specific estimates.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Level 3.
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

1. The Company has not disclosed the fair values of financial instruments such as cash and cash equivalents, bank balances, other than cesh and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, other financial assets (except derivatives), trade payables and other financial liabilities (except derivatives) because their
carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value. Further, for financial assets, the Company has taken into consideration the allowances for
expected credit losses and adjusted the carrying values where applicable.

2. The fair values for loans given are calculated based on discounted cash flows using current lending rates and individual credit worthiness of the counterparty.
Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken to account for expected losses of these receivables. Accordingly, fair value of such instruments are not
materially different from their carrying values.

3. Fair values of the Company's interest-bearing borrowings are determined by using discounted cash flow method using the current borrowing rates. Fair value
of such instruments are not materially different from their carrying values. The own non-performance risk as at March 31, 2024 was assessed to be insignificant.

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories including the quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy as at March
31,2024 is as follows:

Quoted Price in Significant Significant
Particulars Carrying Value Notes active market observable inputs |unobservable
{Level 1) {Level 2 inputs [Level 3)

Financial Assets

Amortised Cost

Trade receivables 1,165.03 4 = - -
Loans 12.74 7 - = =
Other Financial Assets o 128.17 8(a) - - -
Cash and Cash Equivalents 28.82 5 - - -
Bank balance other than Cash and Cash Equivals 253.97 6 - - -
Ei ial Liabititi
Amuilised Cusl
Borrowings 2,140.62 11(b) - - -
Trade Payables 826.39 13 - - ; -
Other Financial Liabilities 8.18 14(a) = - -

The carrying value and fair value of financial instriiments hy rategnries inaliuding the quantitative disclasires of fair value measurement hierarchy as at March
31,2024 is as follows: i

Quaoted Price in Significant Significant
Particulars Carrying Vatue Notes active market observable inputs |unobservable
{Level 1) {Level 2) inputs {Level 3)
Financial Assets
Amortised Cost
Trade receivables 899.17 4 - - <
Loans 4.82 7 - - =
Other Financial Assets 101.73 8(a) - - -
Cash and Cash Equivalents 109.98 5 - E -
Bank balance other than Cash and Cash Equivalg 240.69 6 - = -
Amortised Cost
Borrowings 2,028.73 11(b) - - -
Trade Payables 895.06 13 - - -
Other Financial Liabilities 1.00 14(a) - - -

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payable, short term borrowings, bank overdrafts and other current
liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments and are thus measured at amortized cost.
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Note 28: Corporate social responsibility

The companies mentioned under Section 135 of the Companies Act,2013 are requirad to comply with C:SR provisinns. [t aims to promote respensible business
As per Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, every company maeeting the below criteria must constitute a CSR committee and undertake CSR activities. The

criteria are as follows:

a, Companies with a net worth of Rs. 500 crore or more, or
b. Companies with a turnover of Rs. 1,000 crore or more, or
c. Companies with a net profit of Rs. 5 crore or more

Such companies are mandated to spend at least 2% of their average net profits made during the preceding three financial years on CSR activities.

Since, the company does not satisfy any of the above mentioned conditions, CSR is not applicable to the company,

Note 29 : Segment Reporting
The Company has identified "Last Mile Delivery", as its only reportable segment as defined under Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments

Note 30: Analytical Ratios

Annlytical Ratios
Ratio Numerator Denominator March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 % Change Reason for variance
The reason forincrease in ratio
is majorty because of
Total Current Total Current
Current Ratio bt = 0.61 0.46 31,25|decreased liabiliaties in the
assets liabilities
current year as compared to
previous year,
The rea: forincrease in ratio
TS Shareholder's is m:o:‘lor:)ecause ofincreasle
Debt - Equity Ratio (including lease n (2.15) (1.64) 31,13|'s majorly bec:
liabilities) equity . in debt taken in the current year
as compared to previous year,
Earnir ilable Debt Service
rning availa . The reason for Decreasein
. for debt (interest N .
Debt Service service (Net profit and principle ratio is majorly because of
Coverage Ratio aiter B = pmentz (1.85) {4.48) (58.60) |increase in profitin the current
{in times) ) P yA year as compared to previous
taxes + including lease -
depreciation) payments) et
Prolit for the year The reason for decrease in ratio
Return on equity less Average is majorly because of increase
(%) 4 preference Shareholder's 45.59% 86.82% {47.49)|in PAT and increase in equity
dividend, if equity holding in the current year as
any compared to previous year.
The reason for decrease in ratio
is majorly because of increase
Trade recelvall)les Revenuel from Avera'ge trade .69 9.05 (3.91) !n trade rscelvables -and
turnover ratio operations receivables increase in revenue in the
current year as compared to
previous year,
The reason for decreass in ratio
is majorly hecause of increase
Irade payables multi-modal Average trade
pay N 8 9.33 9.75 (4.31)|in trade payables in the current
turnover ratio expenses payables .
year as compared to previous
year.
Average working The reason for decrease inratio
Net capital turnover capital is majorly because of increase
Revenue from o o P I
rallu - (l.e. currant assets (6.15) (6.39) {4.8/)|in current liabilities in the
{in times) P minus current year as compared to
current liabilities) previous year,
The reason for decrease in ratio
Revenus from is majorly because revenue has
Net profit Ratio (%) Net profit after tax I -5.69% -11.26% {49.50) |increased substantially in the
P currenil year as compared to
previous year,
Capital employed
= Net The reason for decrease in ratio
‘Earnings before worth + lease is majorly haransa raveniia has
Return on capltal
e‘m l:"ed (5/., ) J taxand liabilities + -36.32% 112.57% {67.73) |deciensad and debt Increased
P finance cost deferred tax substantially in the current year
liabilities+ total as compared to previous year.
debt
. The reason for increase in ratio
Average invested B A
Return on Income generated funds in is majorly because
from 3.31% 1.86% 77.80|investments in FDRs has
Investment (%) " treasury & )
invested funds . increased in the currentyear as
investments

compared to previous year.
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Note 31 : Financial Risk Management Objectives & Policies:-

The Company's principal financial liabilities, comprises of loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The
main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations and to provide guarantees to
support its operations.

The Company's principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents
that derive directly from its operations. The Company also holds investments.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees
the management of these risks. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks, which are summarised below.

The Company'’s size and operations result in it being exposed to the following market risks that arise from its use of
financial instruments:

a. interest rate risk

b. currency risk

c. price risk

The above risks may affect the Company’s income or the value of its financial instruments. The objective of the
Company’s management of market risk is to maintain this risk within acceptable parameters, while optimising

returns. The Company’s exposure to, and management of, these risks is explained below.

a. Interest Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of

changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Company’s long term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

Interest Rate Sensitivity

For the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, every 1% depreciation / appreciation in the interest rate for
floating borrowings, would have affected the Company’s incremental operating margins approximately as stated
below:

Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Current Finance Cost  * 16.86 1.44
Delta ettectot + 1% change in the rate of interest 18.87 1.62
Delta effect of - 1% change in the rate of interest 14.86 1.25

b. Foreign currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates
primarily to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency).

The company has no Revenue and Cost thatis incurred in foreign currencies. Thus company is not exposed to any
risk on account of foreign exchange fluctuations

c. Equity Price Risk
The company has notinvested in any quoted and unquoted equity securities. Thus the company is not exposed to
any risk on account of equity price fluctuations.
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d. Management of Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities {primarily trade receivables) and from
its investing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions and other financial instruments.

Trade receivable

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures
and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed and individual
credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly
monitored. The Company has diversified customer base consideringthe nature and type of business.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a
large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively.
The calculation is based on historical data. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying
value of each class of financial assets disclosed in Asset. The Company does not hold collateral as security. The
Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located
in several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent markets.

Other Financial Assets

The Company maintains exposure in Cash and Cash equivaletns, term deposits with banks / financial institutions
and investments in marketable debt investments including the government securities. The Company has diversified
portfolio of investment with various number of counter parties which have secure credit ratings hence the risk is
low. The Company's maximum exposure to Credit risk as at March 31, 2022 and 2021 is the carrying value of each
class of financial assets as disclosed.

e.Liquidity Risk

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank overdrafts, and bank loans. 99% of the Company’s borrowing will mature in less than one year at 31 March
2024 (31 March 2023: 95%) based on the carrying valug of borrowings reflecled in U linancial statements. The
Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The
Company has the ability to rollover debt maturing within 12 months with existing lenders.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as at March
31, 2023.

Year Ended On Demand Less than 1 More than 1
Year year

Borrowings 185.55 1,838.17 5.01

Trade Payables - 895.06 -

Total 185.55 2,733.23 5.01 |

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as at March 31

2024:

o - On Demand Less than 1 More than 1
Year year

Borrowings 540.66 1,595.82 4.14

Trade Payables - 804.41 0.00

Total 540.66 2,400.23 4.14
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f. Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and
all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company's
capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company aims to manage its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and
to optimise returns to ourshareholders. The capital structure of the Company is based on management’s judgement
of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic and day-to-day needs. We consider the
amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares.

The Company's policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to
maintain investor, creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its business.
The Company will take appropriate steps in order to maintain, orif necessary adjust, its capital structure.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure
that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure
requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and
borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in
the current period.
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Note 32: Other Statutory information

Details of Benami Property held

No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

Borrowing secured against current assets

The company has borrowing from banks on the basis of Book Debts. The Company has complied with the requirement of filing of
quarterly returns/ statememts with the banks, as applicable, and these returns were in agreement with the books of accounts.

Wilful Defaulter
The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institutions or government or any government authority.

Relationship with struck off Companies
The Company has no transactions with the companies struck off under the Companies Act, 2013.

Compliance with number of layer of Companies
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013,

Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements

The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current of previous financial year.

Utilisation of Borrowed funds and Share premium

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including forcign cntitics (“Intermediaries”) with the underatanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries). The Company has not received any fund from any party (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall
whether, directly or indirectly tend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Undisclosed Income

There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.

Details of Crypto currency of virtual currency
The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.
Valuation of PP&E, intangible asset and investment property

The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets during the current
or previous year.
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Note 32: Other Statutory information

Title deeds of immovable properties not held in name of the company
The title deeds of all the immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

Core Investment Company (CIC)
There are no CIC in the group.

Note 33: Previous period figures

Previous period figures have been regrouped, as considered necessary to confirm with the current period presenitation.

ForV R SABNIS & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Firm No. 0131055W r Opeworld Logistics Private Limited

o ptn Ay

Vikram R Sabnis- akarand Pradhan  Shrikant Nibandhé
Proprietor Director Director
Membership No. 135589 DIN : 00102413 DIN: 01029115
UDIN: 24135589BKBEIV7675

Prashant Rane

Chief Executive Officer

Date: May 25, 2024 Date: May 25, 2024
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbal




